
         

 

 

 
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 

COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 7, 2024 
9:00 A.M. 

 
5080 ANNUNCIATION CIRCLE, SUITE 101, AVE MARIA, FLORIDA 34142 

www.avemariastewardshipcd.org 

 

DISTRICT MANAGER 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
May 7, 2024 

9:00 a.m. 
Ave Maria Master Association (office/fitness center) 

5080 Annunciation Circle, Unit 101 
Ave Maria, Florida 34142 

TO JOIN VIA ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84779450200 
MEETING ID: 847 7945 0200 DIAL IN AT: 1-929-436-2866 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Invocation 

D. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..............Page 1 

E. Establish a Quorum 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

G. Comments from the Public for District Items on the Agenda 

H. Approval of Minutes 

1. April 2, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………….....................................................Page 2 

I. Consent Agenda 

1. Ratification of Proposal for Asphalt Patch…………………………………………………………...…….Page 9 

2. Acceptance of Notice of Dismissal – Figueroa v Ave Maria, 23269………………………………………Page 11 

3. Consider Approval of License Agreement for Storage of Construction Materials 
(Quality Enterprises)………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 12 

4. Consider Approval of Addendum to Proposal between the District and O’Donnell Landscapes, Inc. 
for Ave Maria Boulevard…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 20 

5. Ratification of Davey Tree Proposal to Replace Sylvestris Palm Tree……………………………………..Page 24 

6. Consider Approval of Sunbelt Rental Agreement…………………………………………………………..Page 25 

7. Consider Approval Garcia Farms Credit Application………………………………………………………Page 28 

J. Old Business 

1. AMSCD Projects Update…………………………………………………………………………...............Page 35 

K. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Temporary Access Agreement for Student Education Research Activities 
with Ave Maria University………………………………………………………………………………….Page 37 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2024-04 – Approving a Spending Authority Resolution and Agreement 
Regarding Use of District Issued Credit Card………………………………………………………………Page 50 

 

3. Discussion Regarding Reserve Study  

L. Administrative Matters 

1. Legal Report 
2. Engineer Report 
3. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials…………………………………………………………………..……....................................Page 55 

M. Final Public Comments 

N. Board Members Comments 

O. Adjourn 
*Public Comment will be limited to three minutes (3:00) with no rebuttal 



Publication Date
2024-04-26

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING
The Board of Supervisors (the Board) of the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (the District) will hold
a Regular Board Meeting (Meeting) at 9:00 a.m. on May 7, 2024, in the Ave Maria Master Association located
at 5080 Annunciation Circle, Unit 101, Ave Maria, Florida 34142. The Meeting will also be available for viewing
utilizing communications media technology (Virtual Attendance) through the following login information,
however public comment will only be available to those participating in person. Virtual Attendance is offered
for convenience only and in the event there are interruptions in internet service or other technical di�culties
the Meeting will continue at the physical location regardless of availability of the Virtual Attendance option.
Join by URL for VIDEO ACCESS at: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84779450200
Meeting ID: 847 7945 0200
Join by PHONE at: 1-929-436-2866
Meeting ID: 847 7945 0200
The purpose of the Meeting is for the Board to address District related items as noted on the Agenda. At such
time the Board is so authorized and may consider any business that may properly come before it.
A copy of the agenda may be obtained at the o�ces of the District Manager, Special District Services, Inc.,
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (561) 630-4922, during normal business hours, or by
visiting the Districts website at www.avemariastewardshipcd.org seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.
The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. The
meeting may be continued to a date, time and place to be speci�ed on the record at the meeting. There may
be occasions when Board Supervisors or District Staff may participate by speaker telephone or other
communications media technology.
Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment
should contact the District Managers O�ce at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. If you are
hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771
(TTY)/1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Managers o�ce.
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at
the meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person may
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon
which such appeal is to be based.
AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT
www.avemariastewarshipcd.org
PUBLISH: NAPLES DAILY NEWS 04/26/24

Page 1



Page 1 of 5 
 

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
Ave Maria Master Association 

5080 Annunciation Circle, Unit 101  
Ave Maria, Florida 34142 

or 
TO JOIN VIA ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83198051068 

MEETING ID: 831 9805 1068  DIAL IN AT: 1 929 436 2866 
April 2, 2024 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The April 2, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Ave Maria Master Association located at 5080 
Annunciation Circle, Unit 101, Ave Maria, Florida 34142.  The meeting was also available via the 
Zoom information indicated above.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
C. INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Klucik led the meeting in prayer. 
 
D. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Naples Daily News on March 22, 2024, as legally required. 
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following: 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Chairman Thomas Peek Present 
Vice Chair Jay Roth Present 
Supervisor Jeff Sonalia Present 
Supervisor Tom DiFlorio Present 
Supervisor Robb Klucik Present 

 
District Staff in attendance were:   
 
District Manager Andrew Karmeris Special District Services, Inc. 

Director of Operations Sal D’Angelo  Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel  Alyssa Willson (via Zoom) Kutak Rock, LLP 

Page 2



Page 2 of 5 
 

District Engineer Ted Tryka  LJA Engineering, Inc. 

Owner Representative  David Genson  Barron Collier Companies 

 
Also present were the following: 
 
Kim Twiss, Commissioner McDaniel and several members of the public. 
 
There were also many others present via Zoom. 
 
F. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item #1 Consider Ratification of Peninsula Engineering Agreement/Approval of Work Authorizations 
from the consent agenda was moved to New Business K.6. and was changed from Consider 
Ratification* to Approval.   
 
G. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items on the agenda.  
 
H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1. March 5, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the March 5, 2024, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. DiFlorio, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the March 5, 2024, Regular Board Meeting. 
 
I. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consider Approval of Updated Estimate form Paradise Builders for Concrete Pad 
2. Consider Approval of Tropic Trailer and US Mini Truck Trailer Quotes  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously approving the 
consent agenda, as presented. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
  

1. AMSCD Projects List  
 
Staff reviewed the list briefly. 
 
Mr. Genson provided updates on Anthem Parkway Phase 5A and 5B.  
 
Mr. Tryka reported on the Apron at Owens roundabout should have an estimated end date of Fall 
2024 and provided an update on the Sign at Oil Well Road project.  Mr. Klucik asked how this project 

Page 3



Page 3 of 5 
 

was to be funded?  Mr. Genson stated it was from bond funds.  Mr. Klucik added that the project cost 
is a lot of money for something he didn’t believe was 100% necessary.   
 
Mr. D’Angelo addressed the parking on District roads and the asset management software updates.  
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
  

1. Discussion Regarding Summit Broadband Protocol 
2. Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Access Agreement 
3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Responding to Utility Work Requests and Providing 

for Severability and Effective Date 
 

Ms. Willson presented this item and explained that items #1 and #2 are part of item #3 Resolution 
2024-03.  Mr. Klucik asked if there is something existing other than what comcast currently offers?  
Mr. Genson said that Comcast is the sole option now and that Spectrum was initially for AMU but 
provides fiber optics.  Mr. Klucik asked if Summit can do this on a government easement, how can 
the district enforce it?  Ms. Willson said this agreement can help if we need the area repaired after the 
utilities are put in.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed unanimously approving 
Resolution No. 2024-03 – Responding to Utility Work Requests and Providing for Severability and 
Effective Date, as presented. 
 

4. Consider Approval of Figueroa v Ave Maria, 23-269 Settlement 
 
Ms. Willson presented and explained that this would be to the general terms of the settlement as it 
has not been finalized.  
 
Mr. Klucik stated that he was not comfortable agreeing to a settlement that is not in final form.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed 4 to 1 with Mr. Klucik voting 
against, approving the general terms of the Figueroa v Ave Maria, 23-269 Settlement and authorizing 
the chair to sign the finalized settlement subject to legal review.  
 

5. Discussion Regarding Golf Cart Use and Traffic Regulation 
 

Mr. D’Angelo informed the Board that FHP and CCSO had been issuing citations.  He then read a 
statement from the statutes regarding the laws for the golf carts.  Lee from the Collier County Sherif’s 
Office spoke on the topic and explained the gray area with golf cart regulations.  Mr. Klucik stated 
that there is a lot of misinformation in the community as well as residents getting tickets for golf cart 
seatbelts when they had not previously.  He asked Ms. Willson to look into the whether low speed 
vehicles were allowed on cart paths.  He also asked staff to coordinate with master association to get 
golf cart information sent out in the Friday email blast.  
 

 
6. Consider Approval of Peninsula Engineering Agreement/Approval of Work 

Authorization #1. 
 

Page 4



Page 4 of 5 
 

Ms. Willson presented this item.  Mr. Klucik asked about the open-ended contract and if that was 
the standard in the industry?  Ms. Willson said it was and Mr. Tryka also added that it was the 
standard in the industry.  
  
A motion was made by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. DiFlorio and passed 4 to 1 with Mr. Klucik 
voting against Approval of Peninsula Engineering Agreement/Approval of Work Authorization #1. 
 
L.        ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
 1.  Legal Report  
 
Ms. Willson had nothing further to report.  
 
 2.  Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Tryka discussed the stop ahead sign as a remedy for the prior meeting’s stop sign discussion.  Mr. 
Klucik added that he appreciates it when residents bring safety concerns to the Board and thanked 
Mr. Aubert for his remarks.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. DiFlorio, seconded by Mr. Roth and passed unanimously authorizing 
staff to take all final actions associated with installing the stop ahead sign.  
 
 3.  Manager’s Report 
 
Mr. Karmeris went over the financials provided in the agenda packet.   
 
M. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
District resident Pedro Abrahante asked about the Traffic Lights on Oil Well Road/SR 29.  He alsoed 
asked if there was a new road on Everglade corridor to I-75 and whether there was a Rod+Gun Club 
coming to Big Cypress.  
 
District resident David Shnaidor read an article in the paper about how the newly formed Ave Maria 
Civic Association would have helped with the semi truck parking issue the District experienced and 
ultimately remedied?  Mr. Klucik stated that there is no place for residents to gather and voice 
concerns and that the Civic Association meetings are a place for that to happen.  He also added that 
the Civic Association could express concerns at District meetings with more weight.  
 
District resident Scott Dobson stated that the speed limit of 45 mph should be lowered to 35 mpb 
coming off of Oil Well.  He also said that people are failing to stop at cross walks and that the 
irrigation system should water grass not the roads.   
 
District resident David Sanford commented that tomorrow at 6:00 p.m. there would be another Civic 
Association meeting.    
 
District resident Bea Sanford asked for an update on the pickleball courts that were mentioned in June 
2023 at a town hall meeting.  Mr. Genson said that is being negotiated with Pulte and did not have a 
timeline.     
 

Page 5



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
District resident John Turner expressed concerns with golf carts on public roads and the safety of the 
golf cart drivers and residents.  He added that community designs need to be redesigned with golf 
cart use in mind.  
 
District residents Jim and Kate Leonard asked how people learn about the golf cart handbook and 
who enforces getting the Ave Maria sticker for registering the golf cart.  He added that last week 
sitting at tropical smoothie he saw 8 golf carts go by without the required sticker.    
 
Commissioner McDaniel addressed the board and the members of the public.  He commented on 
multiple items brought up by the residents and added that he would meet with anyone who wanted to 
discuss further after the meeting.  He also added that the next Civic Association meeting is tomorrow 
night at 6:00 p.m. 
 
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Klucik thanked Ave Maria Development for being supportive of the Civic Association.    
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 10:28 a.m. by Chairman Peek.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chairman 
 

Page 6



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
 

APRIL 2024 

Project Name Date 
appeared 
on List 

Start 
Date 

End 
Date 

Est. Cost % 
Complete 

Responsible 
Party 

Comments 

Anthem Parkway 
Phase 5A (Starts 
at North park to 
Avalon) 

06/07/2022 2nd 
Quarter 

2023 

01/13/25 Est. 
$10,264,854 

30% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Project underway  

Anthem Parkway 
Phase 5B (Will 
include 
roundabout at 
Pope John Paul) 

06/07/2022 4th 
Quarter 

2024 

1st Quarter 
2026 

Est. 
$8,394,852 

0% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Currently in design and 
permitting 

Apron at Owens 
roundabout & 
animal clinic 
handicap parking 
spot 

06/06/2023 Fall 2023 Design 
Plans 

Complete 

Est. Const. 
$98,500 

Design-100% 
Begin Const. 

Phase 

Ted Tryka 
 (District) 

Permitting, prepare 
specs and contract 

docs. Complete Late 
Fall. 

Parking on 
District Roads 

09/13/2022 01/2023 Ongoing N/A N/A Sal D’Angelo 
(District 

Operations 
Manager) 

 

QR Codes and towing 
company address has 
been ordered and will 

be installed upon 
receipt.  

Asset 
Management  

11/01/2022 10/1/23 09/30/24 $75,000 FY24 – 65% Sal DeAngelo 
(District) 

Mapping of roadways, 
sidewalks, curbs, light 

poles are complete.  
Budgeting for Fiscal 

Page 7



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
 

Year 2024 to include 
site visits, mapping of 
additional assets such 
as signs, fixtures, etc. 

Review of 
Signage, potential 
obstructed views, 
and street striping 
conditions 

03/05/2024 03/06/2024 04/16/2024 N/A 50% Sal D’Angelo 
(District 

Operations 
Manager) 

 

District staff is in the 
process of reviewing, 

and any issues 
discovered are being 

noted in the asset 
management program.  

National Gate 
monitoring 

05/02/2023 2023 Ongoing N/A N/A Alyssa Willson 
(District) 

The District continues 
to monitor National 

Gate operation.  
Residents have been 

instructed to file 
complaints filed with 

District Manager.  
Sign at Oil Well 
Road/ Lighting 
Project 

10/03/2023 01/17/2024 11/12/2024 $544,758 25% Ted Tryka 
(District 

Signs installed first 
week of March. Light 
poles to be delivered 

end of May. 
 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE 
20TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR 
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA

MARIELENA FIGUEROA,
CASE NO: 11-2023-CA-000799-0001-XX

Plaintiff,
vs.

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT,

Defendant.
__________________________________/

’PLAINTIFF S NOTICE OF VOLUNTARY DISMISSAL

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, by and through undersigned counsel, and hereby dismisses 

this case with prejudice as the parties have mutually agreed to a resolution of the case.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

WE HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been filed 

through the e-portal and served via email to Jeffrey W. Hurcomb, Esq. (attorney for Defendant) 

at service_JWH@rrbpa.com and jhurcomb@rrbpa.com on this 19th day of April, 2024.

ROBINSON TRIAL LAWYERS, P.A.
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
11555 Heron Bay Blvd Ste 200
Coral Springs FL 33076
Phone: (954) 632-6607
Fax: (954) 697-0569
Dallas@RobinsonTrialLawyers.com

By: /s/Dallas A. Robinson
DALLAS A. ROBINSON, ESQ.
FBN: 0581992

Page 11



1

LICENSE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT AND QUALITY ENTERPRISES, INC., REGARDING THE 

USE OF CERTAIN DISTRICT PROPERTY
 
 THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (the “License Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
_____ day of April, 2024, by and between: 
 

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, 
as amended, with a mailing address of 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, 
Florida 33410 (the “District”); and 
 
QUALITY ENTERPRISES, INC., a Virginia corporation, with a mailing address of 
3494 Shearwater Street, Naples, Florida 34117 (the “Licensee”).

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to and governed by Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”); and
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates, and maintains certain facilities and real property 
within the boundaries of the District (the “District Property”); and
  
 WHEREAS, Licensee desires to store construction materials (the “Construction 
Materials”) on the District Property as depicted in Exhibit A (the “Storage Location”) until the 
Construction Materials are ready to be installed as part of construction described in the  
Agreement Between the District and Licensee for Construction Services for the Ave Maria 
Boulevard and Oil Well Road Lighting Project dated January 17, 2024 (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is willing to allow the Licensee to store the Construction 
Materials in the Storage Location subject to the terms set forth in this License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Licensee warrant and agree that they have all right, 
power, and authority to enter into and be bound by this License Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 
covenants of the parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
District and Licensee agree as follows: 
 

1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this License Agreement.

2. GRANT OF LICENSE. The District hereby grants to the Licensee a non-exclusive 
license to store Construction Materials in the Storage Location as depicted in Exhibit A, (the 
“License”), pursuant to the terms set forth in this License Agreement.  

Page 12



2

3. CONDITIONS ON THE LICENSE. The License granted in Section 2, above, is 
subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 
A. Licensee’s access to the Storage Location is limited to the Storage 
Location and reasonable ingress and egress thereto as set forth in this License 
Agreement. Prior to its use of the License granted herein, Licensee shall meet 
with on-site District staff to confirm the exact Storage Location. 

 
B. Licensee shall routinely monitor the Storage Location and surrounding 
areas in order to maintain the Storage Location and surrounding areas in good, 
clean and working order.  

 
C. Upon notice to the Licensee by the District staff, Licensee shall relocate 
the Construction Materials to a new location on the District Property selected by 
the District staff.  

 
4. EFFECTIVE TERM. This License Agreement shall become effective as of April 

_____, 2024 and shall continue in full force and effect until _______________, 20____ (“Initial 
Term”). Upon expiration of the Initial Term, this License Agreement shall continue from month 
to month under its existing conditions unless revoked or terminated earlier in accordance with 
Paragraph 6, below. Upon termination of this License Agreement, Licensee shall remove the 
Construction Materials from the Storage Location and return the Storage Location to the 
condition it was in prior to the granting of this License.  

5. REVOCATION, SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION. The District and the Licensee 
acknowledge and agree that the License granted herein is a mere privilege and may be suspended 
or revoked, with or without cause, at the sole discretion of the District. In the event the District 
exercises its right to suspend or revoke the License, the District shall provide Licensee with 
written notice of the same, which shall be effective immediately upon receipt by Licensee. 
Licensee may terminate this License Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 
District. Upon any termination, Licensee shall remove the Construction Materials from the 
Storage Location and return the Storage Location to the condition it was in prior to the granting 
of this License. This License Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the completion of 
the Project and restoration of the Storage Location to the District’s satisfaction in its sole 
discretion. 
 

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND POLICIES. Licensee shall comply at all 
times with relevant statutes and regulations governing the operation of the Construction 
Materials and any other equipment used in relation to the License and shall, upon request of the 
District, provide proof of such compliance. Licensee shall comply in all material respects with 
the District’s Rules and Policies and acknowledges that it has received a copy of such Rules and 
Policies.

7. CARE OF PROPERTY. Licensee agrees to use all due care to protect the property of 
the District, its Patrons (as that term is defined in the Policies Regarding District Amenity 
Facilities) and guests from damage. Licensee shall assume responsibility for any and all damage 

Page 13



3

to any real or personal property of the District or any third parties as a result of the Licensee’s 
use of the Storage Location under this License Agreement. Licensee shall repair any damage 
resulting from its use of the License granted herein, including but not limited to operation and 
management of the Construction Materials and any other equipment used in relation to the 
License, within twenty-four (24) hours of the event causing such damage. Any such repairs shall 
be at Licensee’s sole expense, unless otherwise agreed, in writing by the District. The provisions 
of this Paragraph 8 shall survive the termination or expiration of this License Agreement.

 
8. INDEMNIFICATION.  
 

A. Obligations under this paragraph shall include the payment of all 
settlements, judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, fines, forfeitures, 
back pay awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation 
expenses, reasonable attorneys’ fees and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of 
court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), as ordered. 
 
B. Licensee will defend, indemnify, save and hold the District, and its 
supervisors, staff, and assigns (“District Indemnitees”) harmless from all loss, 
damage or injury, including all judgments, liens, liabilities, debts and obligations 
resulting from the acts or omissions of Licensee, its members, managers, agents, 
assigns or employees. 

 
C. For purposes of this section, “acts or omissions” on the part of Licensee 
and its members, managers, agents, assigns or employees, includes, but is not 
limited to, the operation and management of the Construction Materials and any 
other equipment used in relation to the License in a manner that would require a 
permit, license, certification, consent, or other approval from any governmental 
agency which has jurisdiction over such Construction Materials and equipment, 
unless such permit, license, certification, consent, or other approval is first 
obtained. 
 
D. The indemnification rights herein contained shall be cumulative of, and in 
addition to, any and all rights, remedies and recourse to which the District shall be 
entitled, whether pursuant to some other provision of this License Agreement, at 
law, or in equity. The provisions of this Paragraph 9 shall survive the termination 
or expiration of this License Agreement. 

 
9. INSURANCE.

 A. Licensee shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the 
following insurance:

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Florida.

 

Page 14



4

 (2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering Licensee’s legal 
liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 
(one million dollars) combined single limit bodily injury and 
property damage liability, and covering at least the following 
hazards: Independent Contractors’ Coverage for bodily injury and 
property damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation.

 (3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 
(one million dollars) per accident or disease. 

 
 (4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not 

less than $1,000,000 (one million dollars) combined single limit 
bodily injury and for property damage, providing coverage for any 
accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, 
maintenance, or use by Licensee of any owned, non-owned, or 
hired automobiles, trailers, or other equipment required to be 
licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as 

additional insured parties. Licensee shall furnish the District with the 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement upon 
execution of this License Agreement. No certificate shall be acceptable to 
the District unless it provides that any change or termination within the 
policy periods of the insurance coverages, as certified, shall not be 
effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District. 
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to 
conduct business in the State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a 
Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 

 
 10. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES. In the event either party is required to enforce 
this License Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover from the other party all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs.

11. DEFAULT. A default by either party under this License Agreement shall entitle the 
other party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which includes, but is not limited to, the 
rights of damages, injunctive relief, and specific performance.  

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this License 
Agreement.

13. AMENDMENT. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
License Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of 
the parties hereto. 
 

Page 15



5

14. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Licensee may assign its rights, duties or 
obligations under this License Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any 
purported assignment without said written authorization shall be void. 

15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. In all matters relating to this License Agreement, 
Licensee shall act as an independent contractor. Neither Licensee nor any individual employed 
by Licensee in connection with the use of the License granted herein is an employee of the 
District under the meaning or application of any federal or state laws. Licensee agrees to assume 
all liabilities and obligations imposed by one or more of such laws with respect to its employees 
in the use of the License. Licensee shall have no authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, on behalf of the District and Licensee shall have no authority to represent the 
District as agent, employee or in any other capacity. 

16. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents, and other communications hereunder 
(“Notice” or “Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by overnight courier or 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, to the parties as follows:

 A. If to the District: Ave Maria Stewardship 
  Community District 

       2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
Attn: District Manager

 With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP 
  107 West College Avenue 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32301
  Attn: District Counsel 
  

B. If to the Licensee: Quality Enterprises, Inc. 
3494 Shearwater Street 
Naples, Florida 34117  
Attn: Louis J Gaudio, VP 

 
Except as otherwise provided in this License Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
If any time for giving Notice contained in this License Agreement would otherwise expire on a 
non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. 
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Licensee may deliver 
Notice on behalf of the District and the Licensee. Any party or other person to whom Notices are 
to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address 
to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days’ written notice to the 
parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 

Page 16



6

17. INTERFERENCE BY THIRD PARTY. The District shall be solely responsible for 
enforcing its rights under this License Agreement against any interfering party. Nothing 
contained herein shall limit or impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by 
a third party to this License Agreement.

 
18. PUBLIC RECORDS. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that all documents of any 

kind relating to this License Agreement may be public records and shall be treated as such in 
accordance with Florida law. 

 
19. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This License Agreement and the provisions 

contained herein shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida. The parties agree that venue for any action arising hereunder shall be in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction in Collier County, Florida. 

 
20. ARM’S LENGTH NEGOTIATION. This License Agreement has been negotiated 

fully among the parties as an arm’s length transaction. The parties participated fully in the 
preparation of this License Agreement and received, or had the opportunity to receive, the advice 
of counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this License 
Agreement, the parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the language and any 
doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 

 
21. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This License Agreement is solely for the benefit 

of the parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason of, to or for 
the benefit of, any third party not a formal party to this License Agreement. Nothing in this 
License Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any 
person or legal entity other than the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason 
of this License Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this License Agreement; and 
all of the provisions, representations, covenants and conditions contained in this License 
Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their 
respective representatives, successors and assigns. 

 
22. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this License Agreement has been duly 

authorized by the appropriate body or official of each of the parties hereto, each of the parties has 
complied with all the requirements of law and each of the parties has full power and authority to 
comply with the terms and conditions of this License Agreement. 

 
 23. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this License Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this License Agreement, or any part of this License Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable.

24. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this License 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this License Agreement. 

 

Page 17



Page 18



8

Exhibit A 

Storage Location

Durbin South Amenity 
Center Parking Lot

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Job Site:

Customer:

Contact:

QtyDescription  Extended Price

PROPERTY ENHANCEMENT PROPOSAL

Description

Proposed By:

Job Type:

Enhancement:

Itemized List of Services and Materials 

Unit of Measure Price Per Unit

Total:

PEP Reference

Number:

Proposed Date:

Email:

Email:

We guarantee all nursery stock to be of highest quality, and state inspected when it leaves the nursery. THE DAVEY TREE EXPERT CO. 
agrees to replace any woody plant material which fails to survive the first year after planting date, providing all plants have received  
reasonable care (watering, spraying, cultivation, and pruning). We will not be responsible for damaged plants due to vandalism, wind, rain, 
drought, extreme cold, acts of God, insects, or disease. WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TO VOID GUARANTEE IF ACCOUNT IS NOT PAID 
WITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER BILLED DATE. We reserve the right to substitute materials if necessary due to availability while fulfilling the 
intentions of the design and specifications. Bulbs, Annuals, Perennials, and transplanted material are sold at a no return, no refund, or 
guarantee basis. Fine cracks and warping of construction materials not subject to guarantee. All manufacturers warranties supersede The 
Davey Tree Expert Company warranty. Deposit must be received, or credit terms must be established to schedule work.

Prices subject to change if not accepted ( signed ) within 45 days of above date. Prices subject to change if work not started within 45 days 
of acceptance. Total price does not include any state and or local applicable taxes. 
The prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. 
Payment will be made as outlined above. Any alteration or deviation from specifications involving extra costs will be a extra charge over 
and above the estimate.

Accepted By:

Date:

Due to escalating petroleum costs which have affected our fertilizer and fuel costs, a fuel surcharge will be added to the invoiced amount. 
Currently that surcharge is set at 2.5% and will be adjusted � up or down- based on the national average cost of gas.

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
 

MAY 2024 

Project Name Date 
appeared 
on List 

Start 
Date 

End 
Date 

Est. Cost % 
Complete 

Responsible 
Party 

Comments 

Anthem Parkway 
Phase 5A (Starts 
at North park to 
Avalon) 

06/07/2022 2nd 
Quarter 

2023 

01/13/2025 Est. 
$10,264,854 

40% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Project underway  

Anthem Parkway 
Phase 5B (Will 
include 
roundabout at 
Pope John Paul) 

06/07/2022 4th 
Quarter 

2024 

1st Quarter 
2026 

Est. 
$8,394,852 

0% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Currently in design and 
permitting 

Massa Way 
Irrigation 
Extension 

05/07/2024 05/02/2024 01/15/2025 Est, 
$734,741 

0% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Working to provide 
contractors a Notice of 

Commencement 

Arthrex 
Commerce Park 

05/07/2024 02/01/2024 01/15/2025 Est. 
TBD – 

Pending 
Landscape 

Bid 

35% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Working to provide 
contractors a Notice of 

Commencement 

Oil Well Berm 
Landscaping 

05/07/2024 05/01/2024 10/01/2024 TBD 0% Andrew 
Karmeris 
(District) 

Bidding out to 
prequalified contractors  

Apron at Owens 
roundabout & 
animal clinic 

06/06/2023 Fall 2023 Late-Fall 
2024 

Est. Const. 
$98,500 

Design-100% 
Begin Const. 

Phase 

Ted Tryka 
 (District) 

Contract docs and 
specs. For Mid-May 
and prepare for bid. 

Page 35



AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT 
 
handicap parking 
spot 
Asset 
Management  

11/01/2022 10/1/23 09/30/24 $75,000 FY24 – 85% Sal DeAngelo 
(District) 

Mapping of roadways, 
sidewalks, curbs, light 

poles are complete.  
Budgeting for Fiscal 
Year 2024 to include 
site visits, mapping of 
additional assets such 
as signs, fixtures, etc. 

Review of 
Signage, potential 
obstructed views, 
and street striping 
conditions 

03/05/2024 03/06/2024 04/16/2024 N/A 50% Sal D’Angelo 
(District 

Operations 
Manager) 

 

District staff is in the 
process of reviewing, 

and any issues 
discovered are being 

noted in the asset 
management program.  

Sign at Oil Well 
Road/ Lighting 
Project 

10/03/2023 01/17/2024 11/12/2024 $544,758 47% Ted Tryka 
(District 

Light poles delivered 
May 6th. Installation 
Mid-June with bases. 

 

Page 36



 1

TEMPORARY ACCESS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT AND AVE MARIA UNIVERSITY, INC. FOR STUDENT 

EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH 
  

This Temporary Access Agreement (the “Access Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this _____ day of ____________, 2024, by and between: 
 

Ave Maria Stewardship Community District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, as 
amended (the “Act”), and located in Collier County, whose address is 2501A 
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (the “District”); and 

 
Ave Maria University, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, whose address 
is 5050 Ave Maria Boulevard, Ave Maria, Florida 34142 (the “University”). 
 

WITNESSETH 
  
  WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including but not limited to 
stormwater management; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is the owner of certain lands and lakes in Collier County, Florida, 
as more particularly depicted in the attached Exhibit A (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the University has requested, as outlined in the attached Exhibit B, that the 
District grant a temporary, limited waiver of its lake use policy and grant access over the 
Property for the purpose of completing student educational research as outlined in the attached 
Exhibit C (the “University Project”), and the District is agreeable to granting such an agreement 
on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00) and 
other good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants of the parties, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated as a material part of this Access Agreement. 
 

2. GRANT OF ACCESS. The District hereby grants to the University a temporary, 
non-exclusive access over, upon, under, through, and across the Property for the sole purpose of 
completing the University Project (the “Access”) pursuant to the following: 

 
a. The boat used for purposes of completing the University Project activities shall be 
an eighteen-foot (18-foot) Sea Ark MV 1872, or like equivalent john boat, with an 
outboard engine for the purpose of limiting wake.  
b. Boat launch access shall only be at locations depicted on the attached Exhibit D. 

Page 37



 2

c. All students/participants must wear uniform vests identifying them as a 
student/participant of the University Project. 
 
d. All University participants must complete the Waiver and Release of Liability 
form attached hereto as Exhibit E (“Waivers”) prior to participation in the University 
Project. University shall maintain executed Waivers on file and provide copies of all 
executed Waivers to the District upon request. 
 
e. Any boat or vessel being used for the University Project shall have a sign stating 
“Ave Maria University Student Educational Research”. 
 
f. The University agrees and acknowledges that the District makes no 
representations or warranties that the Property is suitable for the University’s needs. To 
the extent the Property is not accessible or otherwise suitable for the University’s needs, 
the University assumes all risk and liability associated with any use of the Property 
including damage to property owned by third parties.  
 
g. The University understands and agrees all activities relating to the University 
Project shall be in accordance with Florida Law. 

 
3. TERM; TERMINATION. The University shall be permitted to use the Access until 

such time as the University Project is complete, at which time the Access shall terminate. The 
District may terminate the Access with or without cause, in the District’s sole discretion, 
immediately upon written notice. Upon the notification of termination of the Access, the 
University shall immediately cease any and all activities relating to the University Project other 
than any necessary repair or restoration of Damages (defined below0 required pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement.  

 
4. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The University shall keep, 

observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances when conducting the University Project. 

 
4. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
a. The University acknowledges and agree that all University Project activities 
contemplated hereunder is being done to fulfill education credit requirements for the 
University and not for the benefit of the District. As such, the University agrees to 
indemnify and hold the District harmless from and against any and all damages, losses or 
claims, including but not limited to legal fees and expenses, to the extent that such 
damages, losses or claims are attributable to actions, omissions, or negligence in the use 
of the Property by the University.  

 
b. The University agrees that nothing contained in this Access Agreement shall 
constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitations on liability set forth in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, and other law. 
 

Page 38



 3

5. DAMAGE. In the event there are damages within the Property or within the 
District’s other property resulting from the University’s  actions (the “Damages”), the University 
agrees to pursue the restoration of the Property or any of the improvements so damaged to the 
original condition and grade, including, without limitation, repair and replacement of any 
landscaping, hardscaping, plantings, ground cover, irrigation, roadways, driveways, sidewalks, 
parking areas, fences, walks, utility lines, stormwater facilities, pumping facilities, pumps and 
other structures, within thirty (30) days of the completion of the University Project or 
termination of the term of this agreement whichever is first, and the University shall allow no 
lien to attach to the Property or any improvements located on said property or District’s other 
property arising out of work performed by, for, or on behalf of the University. The University 
shall notify the District in writing that the University Project is complete within five (5) business 
days of completion. The University’s restoration of Damages to District property or 
improvements located thereon shall be completed within thirty (30) days of the completion of the 
University Project or termination of the term of this Access Agreement whichever is first. In the 
event such Damages are not restored to the sole satisfaction of the District, District may, in its 
sole discretion, undertake such repairs and remediations, and the University shall pay to the 
District all such amounts within ten (10) days of receipt of such invoice. 
 

6. DEFAULT. A default by any party under this Access Agreement shall entitle the 
other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include but not be limited to the 
right of actual damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance. 
 

7. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that the District or the University 
seeks to enforce this Access Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees 
and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution or appellate proceedings. 
 

8. NOTICES. Any notice, demand, consent, authorization, request, approval or other 
communication that any party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other party 
pursuant to this Access Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing, signed by the 
party giving notice and delivered personally to the other parties or sent by express 24-hour 
guaranteed courier or delivery service or by certified mail of the United States Postal Service, 
postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party as follows (or to such 
other place as any party may by notice to the others specify): 
 
  To the District: Ave Maria Stewardship Community District 

   2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
Attn: District Manager 

 
  With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP 
  107 West College Avenue 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Attn: District Counsel 
 
  To the University: Ave Maria University, Inc. 

Page 39



 4

5050 Ave Maria Boulevard 
Ave Maria, Florida 34142  
Attn: _____________________ 

  
Notice shall be deemed given when received, except that if delivery is not accepted, 

notice shall be deemed given on the date of such non-acceptance. Notices delivered after 5:00 
p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day shall be deemed received on the next 
business day. If any time for giving notice would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the 
notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business 
days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the University may deliver Notice on behalf of the 
District, and the University. 
 

9. THIRD PARTIES. This Access Agreement is solely for the benefit of the formal 
parties hereto, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit 
of any third party not a formal party to this Access Agreement. Nothing in this Access 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Access Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions hereof. The District shall be solely 
responsible for enforcing its rights under this Access Agreement against any interfering third 
party. Nothing contained in this Access Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s right to 
protect their rights from interference by a third party. 
 

10. ASSIGNMENT. No party may assign, transfer or license all or any portion of its 
rights under this Access Agreement without the prior written consent of the other parties. 
 

11. CONTROLLING LAW. This Access Agreement shall be construed, interpreted and 
controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
 12. PUBLIC RECORDS. The University understands and agrees that all documents of 
any kind provided to the District or to District Staff in connection with this Access Agreement 
are public records and are to be treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 
 

13. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Access Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this Access Agreement, or any part of this Access Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 
 

14. BINDING EFFECT. This Access Agreement and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 

15. AUTHORIZATION. By execution below, the undersigned represent that they have 
been duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute this 
Access Agreement, and that each party has complied with all the requirements of law and has 
full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 

Page 40



 5

 
16. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 

Access Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by all 
parties hereto. 
 

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Access 
Agreement. 

 
 
 
 

(SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed by their 
duly authorized officers effective as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 

AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT 

ATTEST:       
 
 
_____________________________   ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
          
 
WITNESS:      AVE MARIA UNIVERSITY, INC. 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
 
       By:       
 
       Its:       
 
 
 
Exhibit A: District Property 
Exhibit B: University Request 
Exhibit C: Description of University Project 
Exhibit D: Depiction of Boat Launch Access Points 
Exhibit E: Waiver and Release of Liability 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 7

Exhibit A 
 

District Property 
 

 

Page 43



 8

Exhibit B 
University Request  

Rationale for AMU Biology Department boat purchase and request for access to Ave Maria 
bodies of water – Spring 2024 

 
The purchase of a Sea Ark Jon boat, trailer, and Yamaha outboard engine will benefit our Marine Biology and 
Environmental Science degrees. A boat will enhance student and faculty research and development of boating, 
trailering, and field work skills for students in both freshwater and estuary settings. Access to Ave water bodies is 
critical to carrying out these goals. Below is the rationale for asking the Ave Maria Stewardship District for 
permission to access the water bodies of Ave Maria. 
 
In the past five years, we have had an increase in the number of students interested in careers related to 
conservation, fisheries, or wildlife. These students need to gain experience driving, trailering, and caring for a 
vessel, and working with different fish capture techniques, mainly with different nets (i.e., hoop and fyke). Boating, 
trailering, and fish capturing experience will make our students more competitive in the job market or for graduate 
school programs. In addition to boat and trailer training, every person involved will obtain the Florida Boater Safety 
Education ID per Florida law. Lastly, the boat and trailer will be insured. 
 
Access to Ave water bodies is critical to our success for three reasons. 

1) We can maximize our time and effort.  
a. Lake Trafford ramp is a 25-minute drive, and any other location is 45-65 minutes. Therefore, the 

time invested of driving and off-loading and loading the boat and gear, not including research 
efforts, will be 1hr 15min to 2hrs 35min. 

b. Being on-site in Ave will allow us, in a time-efficient way, to conduct boat and trailering training 
that each student will be mandated to undergo if they are to be a part of a research project or class 
training. Our goal is to provide boat and trailering training that will make our students stronger 
applicants for graduate schools or jobs. Longer drive times will be a barrier to conducting training 
due to already tight schedules. 

 
2)  We can develop a long-term environmental monitoring program. 

a. This program will monitor fish populations, water quality data (i.e., temperature, dissolved 
oxygen, pH, turbidity), chemical pollutants, and invertebrates, among other things. Collecting this 
data can help Ave continue becoming stewards of our local corner in the Big Cypress Region. 

 
3) Multiple AMU courses will benefit. 

a. Marine Biology, Marine Botany, Tropical Ecology and Field Biology, Oceanography, and Aquatic 
Ecology.  

 
In sum, we think the boat will give us a capacity for student experience and research that could transform our marine 
biology and environmental science programs from something slightly aspirational into a very attractive and 
marketable program.  
 
By granting us boat access to the Ave Maria waterways, the Ave Maria Stewardship District can play a significantly 
positive role in the success of AMU Biology and, most importantly, of students both now and for decades to come.  
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Brett T. Feger, MS, MA 
Director of Environmental Science 
Instructor of Biology 

 
 
 
 

Page 44



 9

Exhibit C 
Description of University Project Activities 

University Project shall include the following activities: 
- Use of a boat as described in the Agreement (Sea Ark John Boat with Outboard Engine)- 

no wake permitted with boating. 
- Capturing fish using hoop and fryke nets 
- Conduct boat and trailer training activities.  Such training activities shall be done on the 

lake behind the University ONLY.   
- Monitor fish populations, water quality data, chemical pollutants, and invertebrates  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 10 

Exhibit D 
 

Boat Launch Access Points 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 46



 11 

Exhibit E 
Waiver and Release of Liability 

 
 

Page 47



 12 

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY 
 
In consideration of the risk of injury while participating in the Ave Maria University Student Educational Research 
Project (the "Activity"), and as consideration for the right to participate in the Activity, I 
____________________________________________ (the “Participant”), do hereby affirm, for myself, my heirs, 
executors, administrators, assigns, or personal representatives, knowingly and voluntarily enter into this waiver and 
release of liability (“Waiver and Release”), and hereby waive any and all rights, claims or causes of action of any 
kind whatsoever arising out of my participation in the Activity, and do hereby release and forever discharge Ave 
Maria Stewardship Community District, Ave Maria Development, LLLP, located at 2600 Golden Gate Parkway, 
Naples, Florida 34105, and their affiliates, managers, members, board of supervisors, officers, agents, attorneys, 
staff, volunteers, heirs, representatives, predecessors, successors and assigns, for any physical or psychological 
injury, including but not limited to illness, paralysis, death, damages, economical or emotional loss, that I may suffer 
as a direct result of my participation in the aforementioned Activity, including traveling to and from an event related 
to this Activity. I expressly acknowledge that I assume all risk for any and all injuries and illness that may result 
from my own, participation the Activities, including, but not limited to any injuries sustained by me. Without 
limiting the foregoing, I hereby acknowledge and agree that Ave Maria Stewardship Community District or Ave 
Maria Development, LLLP, will not in any way supervise or oversee the Activities. 
 
I AM VOLUNTARILY PARTICIPATING IN THE AFOREMENTIONED ACTIVITY AND I AM 
PARTICIPATING IN THE ACTIVITY ENTIRELY AT MY OWN RISK. I AM AWARE OF THE RISKS 
ASSOCIATED WITH PARTICIPATING IN THIS ACTIVITY, WHICH MAY INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT 
LIMITED TO, PHYSICAL OR PSYCHOLOGICAL INJURY, PAIN, SUFFERING, ILLNESS, 
DISFIGUREMENT, TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT DISABILITY (INCLUDING PARALYSIS), ECONOMIC 
OR EMOTIONAL LOSS, AND DEATH. I UNDERSTAND THAT THESE INJURIES OR OUTCOMES MAY 
ARISE FROM MY OWN OR OTHERS' NEGLIGENCE, OR THE CONDITION OF THE ACTIVITY 
LOCATION(S). NONETHELESS, I ASSUME ALL RELATED RISKS, BOTH KNOWN OR UNKNOWN TO 
ME, OF MY PARTICIPATION IN THIS ACTIVITY. 
 
I agree to indemnify and hold harmless Ave Maria Stewardship Community District and Ave Maria Development, 
LLLP against any and all claims, suits, or actions of any kind whatsoever for liability, damages, compensation or 
otherwise brought by me or anyone on my behalf, including attorney's fees and any related costs, if litigation arises 
pursuant to any claims made by me or by anyone else acting on my behalf. If Ave Maria Stewardship Community 
District or Ave Maria Development, LLLP, incurs any of these types of expenses, I agree to reimburse Ave Maria 
Development, LLLP, and/or Ave Maria Stewardship Community District. 
 
I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THIS WAIVER AND RELEASE AND FULLY 
UNDERSTAND THAT IT IS A RELEASE OF LIABILITY. I EXPRESSLY AGREE TO RELEASE AND 
DISCHARGE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY DISTRICT, AVE MARIA DEVELOPMENT, 
LLLP, AND ALL OF THEIR AFFILIATES, MANAGERS, MEMBERS, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
OFFICERS, AGENTS, ATTORNEYS, STAFF, CONTRACTORS, VOLUNTEERS, HEIRS, 
REPRESENTATIVES, PREDECESSORS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, 
CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, ACTIONS, SUITS, DEMANDS OR CAUSES OF ACTION AND I AGREE TO 
VOLUNTARILY GIVE UP OR WAIVE ANY RIGHT THAT I OTHERWISE HAVE TO BRING A LEGAL 
ACTION AGAINST AVE MARIA DEVELOPMENT, LLLP, OR AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR PROPERTY DAMAGE. 
 
To the extent that statute or case law does not prohibit releases for negligence, this release is also for negligence on 
the part of Ave Maria Development, LLLP, and Ave Maria Stewardship Community District, and their present, 
former, and future directors, officers, volunteers, representatives, board of supervisors, contractors, employees and 
agents 
 
In the event that I should require medical care or treatment, I agree to be financially responsible for any costs 
incurred as a result of such treatment. I am aware and understand that I should carry my own health insurance. 
 
In the event that any damage to equipment or facilities occurs as a result of my or my family's willful actions, 
neglect, or recklessness, I acknowledge and agree to be held liable for any and all costs associated with any such 

Page 48



 13 

actions of neglect or recklessness. 
 
This Waiver and Release was entered into at arm's-length, without duress or coercion, and is to be interpreted as an 
agreement between two parties of equal bargaining strength. I agree that this Waiver and Release is clear and 
unambiguous as to its terms, and that no other evidence will be used or admitted to alter or explain the terms of this 
Waiver and Release, but that it will be interpreted based on the language in accordance with the purposes for which 
it is entered into. 
 
In the event that any provision contained within this Waiver and Release shall be deemed to be severable or invalid, 
or if any term, condition, phrase, or portion of this agreement shall be determined to be unlawful or otherwise 
unenforceable, the remainder of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect, so long as the clause severed 
does not affect the intent of the parties. If a court should find that any provision of this agreement to be invalid or 
unenforceable, but that by limiting said provision it would become valid and enforceable, then said provision shall 
be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited. 
 
In the event of an emergency, please contact the following person(s) in the order presented: 
 
Emergency Contact                  Contact Relationship                       Contact Telephone    
    
    
    
 
I understand that this document is intended to be as broad and inclusive as permitted by the laws of the State of 
Florida. I further understand that nothing in this waiver and release shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the 
Ave Maria Stewardship Community District’s limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes 
or other statute or law. I agree that if any portion of this Waiver and Release is deemed invalid, that the remainder 
will remain in full force and effect. 
PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information 
you submit on this form may become part of a public record. This means that, if a citizen makes a public 
records request, the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District may be required to disclose the information 
you submit to us. Under certain circumstances, the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District may only be 
required to disclose part of the information submitted to the District. If you believe that your records may 
qualify for an exemption under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, please notify the District Manager. 
I CERTIFY THAT I AM AT LEAST EIGHTEEN (18) YEARS OF AGE AND I HAVE READ THIS 
DOCUMENT, AND I FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENT AND FURTHER UNDERSTAND THAT BY 
SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT THAT I AM WAIVING CERTAIN LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES. I 
AM AWARE THAT THIS IS A RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND A CONTRACT AND I SIGN IT OF MY 
OWN FREE WILL. I UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING BELOW, SUCH WAIVER AND RELEASE, 
INCLUDING ALL OF THE TERMS IN THE PRECEDING PARAGRAPHS, SHALL APPLY EACH AND 
EVERY TIME I UTILIZE THE DISTRICT’S FACILITIES OR LANDS. 
Participant's Name:   

Participant's Address:    

Signature:   

Date: ____________________, 2024 

*Please complete a Release for EACH Participant separately.  

Page 49



Page 1 of 5 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AUTHORIZING THE DISBURSEMENT 
OF FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE 
DISTRICT’S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (“BOARD”); SETTING 
CERTAIN MONETARY THRESHOLDS; ESTABLISHING CONDITIONS 
PRECEDENT TO THE DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government created and 
existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-461, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose 
of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and services to 
the lands within the District; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to adopt resolutions which may be necessary 
for the conduct of District business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Rule 1.1(2)(f) of the District’s Rules of Procedure contemplates that the 
Board may delegate authority to others to contract or make expenditures on behalf of the 
District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby determines that for purposes of administrative and 
accounting necessity, it is in the best interests of the District, and necessary for the conduct of 
District business, to establish a policy governing the disbursement of funds with prior approval 
by the District Manager, Operations Director, Chairperson and/or Vice Chairperson, as set forth 
below.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1. Payment of Expenses. 

 
A. Continuing Expenses. The Board hereby authorizes the payment of 

invoices of continuing expenses, which meet the following requirements: 
 

1. The invoices must be due on or before the next scheduled 
meeting of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
2. The invoice must be pursuant to a contract or agreement 
authorized by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
3. The total amount paid under such contract or agreement, 
including the current invoice, must be equal to or less than the 
amount specified in the contract or agreement. 

Page 50



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
B. Non-Continuing Expenses. The Board hereby authorizes the 

disbursement of funds for payment of invoices of non-continuing expenses 
which are 1) required or appropriate for the District to maintain orderly, 
efficient and effective operations, maintenance and replacement of the 
District’s facilities and infrastructure, 2) required to provide for the health, 
safety, and welfare of the residents within the District; or 3) required to 
repair, control, or maintain a District facility or asset beyond the normal, 
usual, or customary maintenance required for such facility or assets, 
pursuant to the following schedule so long as funds are available in the 
current fiscal year budget or developer contribution has been secured:  
 

1. Non-Continuing Expenses Not Exceeding $12,000 with 
approval of the District Manager or Operations Director; and  
 
2. Non-Continuing Expenses Not Exceeding $50,000 with 
approval of the District Manager and Operations Director; and 

 
Non-Continuing Expenses exceeding $20,000 shall be approved by the 
Board unless they are an Emergency Expense authorized under Section 
1.C. 

 
Before any expenditure is made under Section 1.B., the  District Manager 
and/or the Operations Director shall confirm that there are available funds 
in the budget to pay the expense, either in the line item most germane to 
the expense or in another budget line item that has the capacity to be used 
for the expense. 
 

C. Emergency Expenses. For emergency expenses exceeding the 
authorization in Section 1.B. above, and in the event that an emergency 
meeting of the Board cannot timely be convened pursuant to the District’s 
Rule 1.3(6) and Florida law, the Board hereby authorizes the disbursement 
of funds in an amount not to exceed $50,000 to address any emergency 
condition affecting the District, but only with the prior written approval of 
the Chairperson, or in his or her absence, the Vice Chairperson of the 
District. For purposes of this Resolution, the term “emergency expense” 
means a purchase or payment necessitated by a sudden unexpected turn of 
events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods, hurricanes, accidents, 
or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of the Board in the 
normal conduct of its business), where the delay of waiting for a board 
meeting would be detrimental to the interests of the District. This includes, 
but is not limited to, instances where delay will jeopardize the funding for 
the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, will likely 
cause damage to property, will prejudice the District’s interest in a project 
already in progress, or will create an undue hardship on the public health, 
safety, or welfare. 

Page 51



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 Section 2. Conditions Precedent to Payment of Expenses.  
 

1. For Non-Continuing Expenses greater than $5,000, the Operations Director 
and/or District Manager shall utilize best efforts to obtain a multiple bids for 
the work.  

2. If a purchasing card is utilized for such purchase, the District Chair and 
Operations Director, or its designee authorized to utilize such card, shall 
execute and abide by the District’s Agreement Regarding Use of District-
Issued Credit Card, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

Section 3. Contracting Authority.  The District Manager shall have authority to execute 
contracts between Board meetings for ongoing operation and maintenance activities of the 
District so long as (1) the current fiscal year adopted budget includes amounts sufficient to 
provide for such scope of work or (2) District Manager has confirmed a developer contribution 
will be provided in such amount or availability of alternate funds. Any such executed agreements 
will be included on an upcoming meeting agenda for Board ratification of such actions. 
 

Section 4. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
Section 5. Effective Date; Conflicts. This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage 

and adoption by the Board, and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed. All District 
resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent of such 
conflict, superseded and repealed.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of May, 2024. 
 
 
ATTEST:     BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVE 

MARIA STEWARDSHIP COMMUNITY 
DISTRICT 

 
 
      ______________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Thomas Peek, Chairperson 
 
 
Exhibit A: Agreement Regarding Use of District-Issued Credit Card 

Page 52



Page 4 of 5 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Agreement Regarding Use of District Issued Credit Card 
 

AGREEMENT REGARDING USE OF DISTRICT-ISSUED CREDIT CARD 
 
As the    for the Ave Maria Stewardship Community District (“District”), I, 

__________________________, as District Manager/Operations Director, understand that I am 
authorized to use the District-issued Credit Card (the “Credit Card”) to make purchases as set 
forth in Resolution 2024-04 adopted by the District on May 7, 2024 (the “Resolution”). In this 
respect, I will adhere to the following: 

 
 1. Compliance with Resolution, Rules & Policies. I agree to abide by all of the 
terms of the Resolution, as may be amended from time to time. I further agree to abide by the 
policies of the entity from which the Credit Card is issued. I understand all such terms, rules, and 
policies. 
 
 2.  Authorized Expenditures Only. I agree to use the Credit Card for approved 
District expenditures only, as set forth in the Resolution, and not personal expenses. I further 
agree not to use the Credit Card to obtain cash advances of any kind, whether from banks, credit 
unions, automatic tellers, or other means. I understand that in all cases of misuse, the District 
reserves the right to recover any monies and other damages from me. 
 
 3. Procurement Procedures by District Manager/Operations Director. District 
Manager/Operations Director shall have the authority to make payment directly to vendors for 
emergency or non-recurring purchases using the Credit Card as described in this section. All of 
District Manager/Operations Director’s expenditures shall be in accordance with the District’s 
Rules of Procedure and Florida law. The District shall provide to District Manager/Operations 
Director one Credit Card with a limit of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for the District 
Manager/Operations Director. The District Manager/Operations Director shall be the only 
individual authorized to use the Credit Card. To the extent feasible, the District 
Manager/Operations Director shall take all necessary steps to ensure that any Credit Card 
purchases are made on a tax-exempt basis. The District shall not pay the Credit Card statement 
until provided with a full accounting, including copies of any receipts, for any monies the 
District Manager/Operations Director spent. Any purchases pursuant to this section that would 
require spending in excess of the applicable line-item amounts set forth in the annual operations 
and maintenance budget adopted by the District’s Board and as may be amended from time to 
time (“O&M Budget”) shall require prior approval from the Board. The District 
Manager/Operations Director shall be responsible for reimbursing the District for any Credit 
Card purchases that are not supported by appropriate receipts, or other proof of payment 
mutually agreed upon by the Parties, or that are not approved as part of the O&M Budget or by 
the Board (“Reimbursement Amount”) as well as any fees or penalties incurred as a result of 
such purchases. The District Manager/Operations Director shall pay the District an additional fee 
in the amount of ten (10) percent of the Reimbursement Amount in the event District 
Manager/Operations Director fails to reimburse the District within fifteen (15) days of receipt of 
notice from the District of unsupported Credit Card charges. 

Page 53



Page 5 of 5 
 

 4. Security.  I agree to maintain the security of the Credit Card at all times in order 
to prevent the Credit Card from being used for fraudulent or corrupt purposes, and to account for 
all Credit Card expenditures with appropriate receipts. 
 
 5. Accounting. I understand that the Credit Card will have a limit of Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000.00) at any given time, and in order for the account to be paid I must submit 
appropriate receipts to the District pursuant to the terms of the Resolution. I understand that 
unaccounted for or unapproved Credit Card expenditures are my responsibility, and that I may be 
liable for them at the discretion of the District. I will notify the District immediately upon 
discovering the Credit Card has been lost, misused, or stolen. 
 
 6. Conclusion of Employment. Upon the conclusion of my employment, I agree to 
submit the Credit Card to the District and all receipts within twenty-four (24) hours of my last 
day of work. 
 
 
Signature: ______________________________  Title:    Date: ____________ 

 
 
Signature: _______________________________  Title: District Chair  Date: ____________ 
 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57


	Ave Maria Stewardship Community Development District - May 7, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	April 2, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Consider Ratification of Proposal for Asphalt Patch
	Acceptance of Notice of Dismissal – Figueroa v Ave Maria, 23269 
	Ratification of License Agreement for Storage of Construction Materials (Quality Enterprises)
	Consider Approval of Addendum to Proposal between the District and O’Donnell Landscapes, Inc. for Ave Maria Boulevard
	Ratification of Davey Tree Proposal to Replace Sylvestris Palm Tree
	Consider Approval of Sunbelt Rental Agreement
	Consider Approval Garcia Farms Credit Application

	AMSCD Projects Update
	Consider Approval of Temporary Access Agreement for Student Education Research Activities with Ave Maria University
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-04 – Approving a Spending Authority Resolution and Agreement Regarding Use of District Issued Credit Card
	Financials




